
 

 
  

 

       
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
          

 
        
           

  
 
 

  
   

    
    

 
   

  
    

 
 

 
    

  
 
        
 
 
 
        
        
 

 
   
   

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
Washington, DC 20463 

October 19, 2021 

Via Email and First Class Mail 
Email:  cg@gobergroup.com 

Chris Gober 
Managing Partner 
The Gober Group 
14425 Falcon Head Blvd. 
Bldg E., Suite 100 
Austin, TX 78738 

RE: MUR 7406 
Heller for Senate 

Dear Mr. Gober: 

On October 6, 2021, the Federal Election Commission accepted the signed conciliation 
agreement and civil penalty submitted on your client’s behalf in settlement of a violation of 
52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122, provisions of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as 
amended.  Heller for Senate has also disgorged the improper contributions to the U.S. Treasury.  
Accordingly, the file has been closed in this matter. 

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.   See 
Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 
(Aug. 2, 2016). Information derived in connection with any conciliation attempt will not become 
public without the written consent of the respondent and the Commission.  See 52 U.S.C. 
§ 30109(a)(4)(B). 

Enclosed you will find a copy of the fully executed conciliation agreement for your files.   
If you have any questions, please contact me at (202) 694-1650. 

Sincerely, 

Christine C. Gallagher 
Attorney 

Enclosure 
Conciliation Agreement 

MUR740600055
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' ....BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION .'(.JI ,. 
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c " ! r·-

In the Matter of ) 
) MUR 7406 

Heller for Senate and ) , 
Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer ) 

) 

CONCILIATION AGREEMENT 

This matler was initiated by a signed, sworn, and notarized complaint by the Nevada Sta!c 

Democratic Party by Alana Mounce, its Executive Director. The Federal Election Commission 

("Commission'') found reason to believe that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her offic ial 

capacity as treasurer ("Committee" or "Respondent"), violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30 122. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission and the Respondent, having participated in 

informal methods of conciliation, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, do hereby agree 

as follows: 

I. The Commission has jurisdiction over the Respondent and the subject matter of 

this proceeding, and this agreement ha,s_ the effect of an agreement entered pursuant to 52 U.S.C. 

§ 30109(a)(4)(A)(i). 

IL Respondent has had a reasonable opportunity to demonstrate that no action should 

be taken in this matter. 

HI. Respondent enters voluntarily into this agreement with the Commission. 

IV. The pertinent facts in this matter are as follows: 

1. Heller for Senate is a political committee within the meaning of 52 U.S.C. § 30 l 01(4). 

2. Chrissie Hastie is the treasurer ofHeller for Senate. 
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MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) 
Conciliation Agreement 
Page 2 of4 

3. No person shall make a contribution in the name of another person or knowingly 

permit his or her name lo be used to make such a contribution, and no committee shall knowingly 

accept a contribution made by one person in the name of another person. See 52 U.S.C. § 30122. 

4. ll is unlawful for corporations to contribute to candidates, and candidates and 

authorized committees are prohibited from knowingly accepting or receiving such contributions. 

See 52 U.S.C. § 30118. 

5. The Commission's regulations provide that ifa political committee treasurer in 

exercising his or her responsibilities under 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b) determined that at lhc time a 

contribution was received and deposited, it did not appear to be made by a corporation or in the 

name ofanother, but later discovers that it is illegal based on new evidence not available lo the 

political committee at the time of receipt and deposit, the treasurer shall refund the contribution 

to the contributor within thirty days of the date on which the illegality is discovered. 11 C.f.R. 

§ 103.3(b)(2). If the political committee does not have sufficient funds to refund the contribution 

at the time !he illegality is discovered, the political committee shall make the refund from the 

next funds it receives. Id. In the altemative, the political committee may disgorge an amount 

equal 10 the amount of the illegal contributions, where the contributor unlawfully made the 

contributions. Advisory Opinion 1996-05 (Jay Kim for Congress). 

6. In a previous enforcement matter, MUR 7248, the Commission found. inter alia, 

reason to believe the Cancer Treatment Centers ofAmerica Global. Inc. ("CTCA ") violated 

52 U.S.C. §§ 30 l 18 and 30122 by making prohibited corporate contributions in lhc name or 

another person when it reimbursed with corporate funds the political contributions of its 

executives. As part of the te11ns of the conciliation agreement in MUR 7248, CTCA waived any 
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MUR. 7406 (Heller for Senate) 
Conciliation Agreement 
Page J of4 

rights it may have had to a refund of the illegal contributions discussed in the conciliation 

agreement and CTCA was required to "seek disgorgement of all such funds from all recipient 

candidates and committees to the U.S. Treasury." See MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ,1 Vl.3 

(July 28, 2017). By letter dated August 18, 2017, as part of the resolution of MUR 7248, CTCA 

notified the Committee thal it was a recipient of some of CTCA's illegal contributions. and 

instructed the Committee to disgorge $27,500, the amount of such contributions, to the U.S. 

Treasury. 

7. The Committee received illegal contributions, and should have disgorged $27.500 to 

the U.S. Treasury within thirty (30) days of its receipt of CTCA·s August 18, 2017 letter, but the 

Committee failed to do so. 

V. Respondent knowingly accepted $27,500 in corporate contributions made in the 

names of others from the Cancer Treatment Centers ofAmerica Global, Inc. in violation of 

52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122 by failing to disgorge the illegal contributions within thirty (30) 

clays of receiving notice of the illegal nature of the contributions. 

Vl. 1. Respondent will pay a civil penalty to the Federal Election Commission in 

the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000). pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(A). 

2. Respondent will disgorge $27,500 to the U.S. Treasury. 

3. Respondent will cease anct desist from violating 52 U.S.C. 

§s 30118 and 30122. 

VTJ. The Commission, on request of anyone filing a complaint under 52 U.S.C. 

§ 30109(a)( I) concerning the matters at issue herein or on its own motion, may review 

compliance with this agreement. If the Commission believes that this agreement or any 
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MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) 
Conciliati<m Agreement 
1>agc 4 of4 

requirement thereof has been violated, it may institute a civil action for relief in the United States 

District Court for the District ofColumbia. 

YUL This agreement shall become effective as of the date that all parties hereto havc 

executed same and the Commission has approved the entire agreement. 

IX. Respondent shall have no more than 30 days from the date this agreement 

becomes effective to comply with and implement the requirements contained in this agreement 

and to so notify the Commission. 

X. This Conciliation Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 

on the matters raised herein, and no other statement, promise, or agreement, either written or 

oral, made by either party or by agents of either party, that is not contained in this written 

agreement shall be enforceable. 

FOR THE COMMISSION: 

Lisa J. Stevenson 
Acting General Counsel 

Charles Kitcher 
Aeling Associate General Counsel 

for Enforcement 

10/19/21 

Date 

FOR THE RESPONDENT: 

BY: 

Date < \ 
1 
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	REQUESTED ACTION 
	As we have shown above, Respondents have violated the Act and Commission regulations by failing to disgorge or refund illegal contributions within the required thirty-day period. Accordingly, we respectfully request that the Commission investigate these alleged violations, and that Respondents be enjoined from further violations and be fined the maximum amount permitted by law. 
	Sincerely, 
	Figure
	Alana Mounce Executive Director, Nevada State Democratic Party 
	State ofNevada 
	State ofNevada 
	State ofNevada 
	) 

	TR
	) 

	County of Clark 
	County of Clark 
	) 


	SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on the 1$th day ofMay, 2018, by Alana Mounce, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence ,to be the p? o who appeared before m~. 
	,);{ cJCt n.J 
	Seal 
	My Commission Expires: 
	Figure
	-5 
	-

	Exhibit A 
	Contributions to Heller for Senate from Individual Donors Employed by Cancer Treatment Centers ofAmerica 
	Table
	CONTRIBUTOR 
	CONTRIBUTOR 
	EMPLOYER 
	RECIPIENT 
	AMOUNT 
	DATE 
	SOURCE 

	Magnussen, Eric 
	Magnussen, Eric 
	Cancer Treatment Center 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/26/2012 
	httg://do~uea.fec.gov/cgi
	-


	bin/feciml?/? 12021291733 
	bin/feciml?/? 12021291733 

	Meisner, Anne 
	Meisner, Anne 
	Cancer Treatment Center 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/26/2012 
	httg://docguea.fec.gov/cgibin/feciml?/? 12021291733 
	-


	Mackin, Stephen 
	Mackin, Stephen 
	Cancer Treatment Center 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/24/2012 
	httg://docguea. fec.gov/cgi
	-


	bin/fecimw?l 2021291730 
	bin/fecimw?l 2021291730 

	Steiner, John 
	Steiner, John 
	Cancer Treatment Center 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/23/2012 
	htm://docguea.fec.gov/cgj
	-


	bin/fccimgl?l 2021291723 
	bin/fccimgl?l 2021291723 

	Lis, Christopher 
	Lis, Christopher 
	Cancer Treatment Center 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/20/2012 
	htt~://do~uea.fec.gov/cgibin/fecimw?l 20212917 l 5 
	-


	Picchietti, Phillip 
	Picchietti, Phillip 
	Cancer Treatment Center 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/20/2012 
	httR://docguea.fec.gov/cgibin/fecimgl?l 2021291714 
	-


	Mayo, Robert 
	Mayo, Robert 
	Cancer Treatment Center 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/20/2012 
	htto://dogguea.fec.gov/cgibin/feciml?/?12021291214 
	-


	Conway, John 
	Conway, John 
	Cancer Treatment Center 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/20/2012 
	htm://do99uea.fec.gov/cgj
	-


	bin/fecimg!'.?12021291713 
	bin/fecimg!'.?12021291713 

	Kroll, Stephen 
	Kroll, Stephen 
	Cancer Treatment Center 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/20/2012 
	htti;i://docguID.fec.gov/cgi
	-


	bin/fccimg!'.? 1202129 l 713 
	bin/fccimg!'.? 1202129 l 713 

	McNeil, John 
	McNeil, John 
	Cancer Treatment Centers of Am 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/20/2012 
	ht!Q://docguro.fec.gov/cgi
	-


	bin/fecimgL?l2021291713 
	bin/fecimgL?l2021291713 

	Bonner, Stephen 
	Bonner, Stephen 
	CTCA 
	Heller for Senate 
	$2,500 
	10/17/20 12 
	ht!Q://docgue[Y.fec.gov/cgibin/foci mg/? l 2020984~ 77 
	-


	TOTAL 
	TOTAL 
	$27.500.00 
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	Figure
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	JUN 11 20f8 Ms. Chrissie Hastie, Treasurer Heller for Senate P.O. Box 371907 Las Vegas, NV 89137 
	RE: MUR 7406 
	Dear Ms. Hastie: 
	The Federal Election Commission received a complaint that Heller for Senate and you in your official capacity as treasurer may have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the "Act"). A copy ofthe complaint is enclosed. We have numbered this matter MUR 7406. Please refer to this number in all future correspondence. 
	The Act affords you the opportunity to demonstrate in writing that no action should be taken against Heller for Senate and you in your official capacity as treasurer in this matter. Ifyou wish to file a response, you may submit any factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the Commission's consideration ofthis matter. Where appropriate, statements should be submitted under oath by persons with relevant knowledge. Your response, which should be addressed to the General Counsel's Office, mus
	This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B) and § 30109(a)(12)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made public. Please be advised that, although the Commission cannot disclose information regarding an investigation to the public, it may share information on a confidential basis with other law enforcement agencies. 
	1 

	Ifyou intend to be represented by counsel in this matter, please advise the Commission by completing the enclosed form stating the name, address and telephone number ofsuch counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any notifications and other communications from the Commission. Please note that you have a legal obligation to preserve all documents, records and materials relating to the subject matter ofthe complaint until such time as you are notified that the Commission has closed its file in this m
	The Commission has the statutory authority to refer knowing and willful violations ofthe Act to the Department ofJustice for potential criminal prosecution, 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(C), and to report infonnation regarding violations of law not within its jurisdiction to appropriate law enforcement authorities. Id § 30107(a)(9). 
	Any correspondence sent to the Commission, such as a response, must be addressed to one ofthe following (note, if submitting via email this Office will provide an electronic receipt 
	by email): 
	by email): 
	by email): 

	TR
	Mail Federal Election Commission Offic.e ofComplaints Examination and Legal Administration Attn: Donna Rawls, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20436 
	Email CELA@fec.gov 


	If you have any questions, please contact Donna Rawls at (202) 694-1650 or toll free at 1-800-424-9530. For your information, we have enclosed a briefdescription ofthe Commission's procedures for handling complaints. 
	Sincerely, 
	Figure
	Jeff S. Jordan Assistant General Counsel Complaints Examination & Legal Administration 
	Digitally signed by Donna Rawls Date: 
	2018.09.14 
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	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	In the Matter of 
	In the Matter of 
	In the Matter of 
	) 

	TR
	) 

	Heller for Senate; 
	Heller for Senate; 
	) 
	MUR 7406 

	Chrissie Hastie, 
	Chrissie Hastie, 
	) 

	in her official capacity as Treasurer; 
	in her official capacity as Treasurer; 
	) 

	TR
	) 


	RESPONSE 
	RESPONSE 
	Through counsel, Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie, in her official capacity as Treasurer, ( collectively, "Respondents") provide the following response to the complaint filed by the Nevada State Democratic Party ("Complainant") and designated by the Commission as MUR 7 406. 
	Respondents have conformed their conduct to the prescriptions and prohibitions of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("FECA" or "the Act"). Respondents acknowledge that FECA and Commission regulations generally prohibit Respondents from receiving contributions from corporations and require Respondents, and all such committees, to refund, or otherwise disgorge these contributions. As discussed herein, Respondents are practically unable to refund the contributions detailed by this complaint

	I. BACKGROUND 
	I. BACKGROUND 
	This complaint arises out ofan investigation unrelated to the conductofRespondents and focusing exclusively on the operations of the Cancer Treatment Centers of America ("CTCA"), a corporation not affiliated with Respondents. In 2017, the FEC investigated CTCA and concluded that CTCA had made a series ofillegal corporate contributions to many federal candidates by reimbursing its employees for their personal contributions to these federal candidates. Respondents were one of many federal candidate committees
	T 202.417.3529 WI @GoberGroup F 877.437.5755 SI 
	GoberGroup.com 

	          
	              
	                                                                
	                                         
	II. LEGAL ANALYSIS 
	Respondents have not violated the FEC’s thirtyday refund or disgorgement requirement because Respondents do not have the specific CTCA funds to refund or disgorge. 
	A. Respondents validly deposited and expended the funds received from CTCA under FECA. 
	                                          
	 

	                                
	 

	                                
	                         
	 

	                                                   
	 
	 

	                             
	 
	 
	 
	 

	          
	                                                                                          
	 
	     
	 

	                                 
	                                                              
	           
	B. Respondents validly expended the contributions now in question subject to a reasonable and approved accounting method and are now practically unable to refund or disgorge those specific CTCA funds. 
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	III. CONCLUSION 
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	MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) First General Counsel’s Report Page 2 of 8 
	1 the political contributions of its executives.  As part of the resolution of MUR 7248, CTCA 2 notified recipient committees, including Heller for Senate, that they had received certain illegal 3 contributions that they are required to disgorge to the U.S. Treasury.4 In response, the Committee acknowledges that it received the CTCA-funded 5 contributions described in the Complaint, but states that it did not learn that those contributions 6 were prohibited corporate contributions until five years later, at
	2
	3 
	4 
	5 

	10 We recommend that the Commission find reason to believe that Heller for Senate and 11 Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122, 12 authorize conciliation prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, and approve the attached 
	conciliation agreement 
	14 . 
	Figure

	MUR 7248 Amended Certification (May 15, 2017). 
	2 

	MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3 (July 28, 2017) (requiring CTCA to “seek disgorgement of all such funds from all recipient candidates and committees to the U.S. Treasury”).  In August 2017, CTCA notified 38 recipient committees of the illegal contributions and requested that they disgorge specified amounts. See Letter from Timothy E. Flanigan, Chief Legal Officer and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer, CTCA, to Hon. Dean Heller (Aug. 18, 2017) (“CTCA Letter to Heller”).  In response to the CTCA lett
	3 

	MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) First General Counsel’s Report Page 3 of 8 
	1 II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 2 In accordance with the terms outlined in the conciliation agreement between the 3 Commission and CTCA in MUR 7248, by letter dated August 18, 2017, CTCA notified the 4 Committee of the Commission’s findings in MUR 7248 that CTCA had made prohibited 5 corporate contributions through a corporate bonus program in which it reimbursed its executives 6 who made individual contributions to various federal political committees with corporate funds.7 The letter further notified the
	6 

	10 that were contributed by the individuals associated with this 11 conduct be disgorged to the U.S. Treasury.  The check 12 should be made payable to the U.S. Treasury with the 13 notation “MUR 7248” on the check face.  The check should 14 be mailed to Mark Shonkwiler, Enforcement Division, 15 Federal Election Commission, 999 E Street, NW, 16 Washington, DC 20463.17 18 The Committee did not disgorge the contributions. 
	7 

	19  In response to the MUR 7406 Complaint, the Committee acknowledges receipt of 20 CTCA’s original notification letter, as well as receipt of the prohibited contributions at issue.21 The Committee contends that it is not required to disgorge such funds because it received the 
	8 

	Id.; see also MUR 7406 Compl. at 2.  CTCA waived any rights it may have had to a refund of the illegal contributions discussed in the conciliation agreement. See MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3; Fireman v. United States, 44 Fed. Cl. 528 (1999). 
	7 

	MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) First General Counsel’s Report Page 4 of 8 
	1 contributions in 2012, the contributions appeared legal at that time, and it did not learn that they 2 were illegal corporate contributions until 2017.3 The Act provides that no person shall make a contribution in the name of another person 4 or knowingly permit his or her name to be used to make such a contribution, and no committee 5 The 6 Act further prohibits corporations from contributing to candidates, and candidates and authorized 7 The 8 Commission’s regulations further provide that if a political
	9 
	shall knowingly accept a contribution made by one person in the name of another person.
	10 
	committees are prohibited from knowingly accepting or receiving such contributions.
	11 

	10 corporation or in the name of another, “but later discovers that it is illegal based on new evidence 
	11 not available to the political committee at the time of receipt and deposit, the treasurer shall 
	12 refund the contribution to the contributor within thirty days of the date on which the illegality is 
	13 discovered.”The regulation at section 103.3(b)(2) further specifies that, “[i]f the political 
	12 

	14 committee does not have sufficient funds to refund the contribution at the time the illegality is 
	Id.  The $27,500 in total contributions, which CTCA impermissibly reimbursed with corporate funds, is comprised of the following individual contributions made to the Committee:  10/20/12 John Conway $2,500; 10/20/12 Steven Kroll $2,500; 10/20/12 Christopher Lis $2,500; 10/20/12 John McNeil $2,500; 10/20/12 Phillip Picchietti $2,500; 10/20/12 Edgar Staren $2,500; 10/20/12 Peter Yesawich $2,500; 10/20/12 John Steiner $2,500; 10/24/12 Stephen Mackin $2,500; 10/26/12 Eric Magnussen $2,500; 10/26/12 Anne Meisner
	9 

	52 U.S.C. § 30122. 
	10 

	52 U.S.C. § 30118. 
	11 

	11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). See also Contribution and Expenditure Limitations and Prohibitions; Contributions by Persons and Multicandidate Political Committees, 52 Fed. Reg.760, 768-769 (Jan. 9, 1987) (explaining that section 103.3(b)(2) applies to contributions whose legality is not in question when received and deposited but which are later discover to be illegal such as, for example, corporate contributions made in the name of employees and further explaining that the rule requires “the amount of the contr
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	1 
	1 
	discovered, the political committee shall make the refund from the next funds it receives.”13 As 

	2 
	2 
	an alternative to refunding the contribution to the contributor, the political committee may 

	3 
	3 
	disgorge to the U.S. Treasury an amount equal to the amount of the illegal contribution.14 

	4 
	4 
	In this matter, there is no allegation that the Committee knowingly accepted illegal 

	5 
	5 
	contributions at the time it accepted the contributions from CTCA executives in 2012.  However, 

	6 
	6 
	the Committee was put on notice in August 2017 that $27,500 in contributions were in fact 

	7 
	7 
	illegal contributions from CTCA and should be disgorged to the U.S. Treasury.  The Committee 

	8 
	8 
	was therefore required to disgorge15 the $27,500 in illegal contributions within thirty days of its 

	9 
	9 
	discovery of the illegality, that is, within thirty days of the August 2017 notification, or be 

	10 
	10 
	considered to have knowingly accepted illegal contributions as of 2017.16 

	11 
	11 
	The Committee argues that the regulation at section 103.3 does not require any refund or 

	12 
	12 
	disgorgement once a committee has held those contribution funds on deposit for more than thirty 

	13 
	13 
	days after receipt.17  The Committee also alleges that it no longer has the specific CTCA funds to 

	14 
	14 
	disgorge, noting that it used a “first in, first out” accounting method, and thus, no longer had any 

	15 
	15 
	funds traceable to CTCA’s 2012 corporate contributions in the name of another to disgorge.18 

	16 
	16 
	The Committee’s argument and regulatory interpretation concerning its refund 

	17 
	17 
	requirements are misplaced.  The explicit language of section 103.3(b) requires, for contributions 

	TR
	13 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). 

	TR
	14 See Advisory Op. 1996-05 (Jay Kim for Congress) at 2-3; see n.7 supra. 

	TR
	15 The Committee could not refund to CTCA because CTCA waived any rights it may have had to a refund. 

	TR
	See n.7 supra. 

	TR
	16 See n.23 infra. 

	TR
	17 MUR 7406 Resp. at 3. 

	TR
	18 Id. at 3-5. 
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	1 “later” discovered to be illegal, a refund within thirty days “of the date on which the illegality is 2 discovered.”  The Commission has not previously read “later,” in the context of a later 3 discovered illegal contribution, to be limited to a thirty day period after deposit of the 4 contributions and the Committee does not present a compelling reason for doing so now.5 Moreover, the regulations do not require that a committee make a required refund (or 6 disgorgement) using the same funds that comprise
	19 

	10 11 Indeed, even if a committee has no funds at the time it discovers the illegality, the regulations are 12 clear that the committee must make the refund from the next funds it receives, which, by 13 definition, are not funds traceable to the initial contribution later discovered to have been 14 A review of the Committee’s disclosure reports shows that it had, at the time it was put 15 on notice in August 2017, and currently has, more than sufficient funds to disgorge the $27,500 16 
	of the illegality, not that the same dollars that comprised the illegal contribution be refunded.
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	illegal.
	21 
	in prohibited corporate contributions.
	22 

	19 
	19 
	19 
	See, e.g., Conciliation Agreement, MUR 4547 (Clinton/Gore ’96) ¶ IV.13 (noting that contributor’s guilty 

	plea, entered three years after the committee had accepted contributions, “put [respondent committee] on notice 
	plea, entered three years after the committee had accepted contributions, “put [respondent committee] on notice 

	regarding the illegality of the . . . contributions” made in the name of another three years prior). 
	regarding the illegality of the . . . contributions” made in the name of another three years prior). 

	20 
	20 
	See 103.3(b)(2) E& J. 52 Fed. Reg. at 768-769. 

	21 
	21 
	See 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). 
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	22 
	Heller for Senate 2017 October Quarterly Report at 2 (Oct. 18, 2017) (disclosing $4.1 million cash on 

	hand); 2018 Year-End Report at 2 (Jan. 31, 2019) (disclosing $184,400 cash on hand). 
	hand); 2018 Year-End Report at 2 (Jan. 31, 2019) (disclosing $184,400 cash on hand). 
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	1 
	1 
	Accordingly, in view of CTCA informing the Committee of its receipt of impermissible 

	2 
	2 
	contributions and the Committee’s failure to disgorge the contributions, we recommend that the 

	3 
	3 
	Commission find reason to believe that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her official 

	4 
	4 
	capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122 by knowingly accepting corporate 

	5 
	5 
	contributions made in the name of another.23 


	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
	See, e.g., MUR 4547 (Clinton/Gore ’96) (finding probable cause to believe that the recipient committee violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) and 441f (since recodified at 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(f) and 30122) for knowingly accepting excessive contributions and contributions in the name of another that the committee failed to refund after notification of their illegality); MUR 4484 (Bainum) General Counsel’s Rpt. at 7-8 (Feb. 7, 1997) and Certification ¶¶ 2-5 (Feb. 14, 1997) (finding reason to believe that recipient commi
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	3 IV. RECOMMENDATIONS 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	1. Find reason to believe that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her official 5 capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122. 6 

	7 
	7 
	2. Approve the attached Factual and Legal Analysis. 8 

	9 
	9 
	3. Enter into conciliation with Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her official 10 capacity as treasurer prior to a finding of probable cause to believe. 11 

	12 
	12 
	4. Approve the attached Conciliation Agreement. 13 

	14 
	14 
	5. Approve the appropriate letter. 15 16 17 Lisa J. Stevenson 18 Acting General Counsel 


	19 20 21 Date Charles Kitcher 22 Acting Associate General Counsel 23 for Enforcement 24 25 26 27 _________________________28 Mark Allen 29 Assistant General Counsel 30 31 32 _________________________33 Christine C. Gallagher 34 
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	37 1.  Factual and Legal Analysis 
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	1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 2 3 FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 4 5 RESPONDENT:   Heller for Senate and MUR 7406 6 Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer 7 8 I. INTRODUCTION 
	9 This matter was generated by a complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission 10 pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(1) alleging that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her 11 official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”) violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 12 1971, as amended (the “Act”), by failing to disgorge improper campaign contributions within 30 13 days of discovering that they came from a prohibited source. 14 Based on the allegations of the complaint, the response, and the 
	1 
	2 
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	1 
	1 
	1 
	MUR 7406 Compl. at 2 (June 5, 2018). 

	2 
	2 
	Id. 

	3 
	3 
	MUR 7248 Amended Certification (May 15, 2017). 


	1 resolution of MUR 7248, CTCA notified recipient committees, including Heller for Senate, that 2 they had received certain illegal contributions that they are required to disgorge to the U.S. 3 Treasury.4 In response, the Committee acknowledges that it received the CTCA-funded 5 contributions described in the Complaint, but states that it did not learn that those contributions 6 were prohibited corporate contributions until five years later, at the conclusion of MUR 7248.7 The Committee asserts that it is 
	4 
	5 
	6 

	10 In accordance with the terms outlined in the conciliation agreement between the 11 Commission and CTCA in MUR 7248, by letter dated August 18, 2017, CTCA notified the 12 Committee of the Commission’s findings in MUR 7248 that CTCA had made prohibited 13 corporate contributions through a corporate bonus program in which it reimbursed its executives 14 who made individual contributions to various federal political committees with corporate funds.15 The letter further notified the Committee that it was the 
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	4 
	4 
	4 
	MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3 (July 28, 2017) (requiring CTCA to “seek disgorgement of all 

	such funds from all recipient candidates and committees to the U.S. Treasury”).  In August 2017, CTCA notified 
	such funds from all recipient candidates and committees to the U.S. Treasury”).  In August 2017, CTCA notified 

	recipient committees of the illegal contributions and requested that they disgorge specified amounts. See Letter from 
	recipient committees of the illegal contributions and requested that they disgorge specified amounts. See Letter from 

	Timothy E. Flanigan, Chief Legal Officer and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer, CTCA, to Hon. Dean Heller 
	Timothy E. Flanigan, Chief Legal Officer and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer, CTCA, to Hon. Dean Heller 

	(Aug. 18, 2017) (“CTCA Letter to Heller”). 
	(Aug. 18, 2017) (“CTCA Letter to Heller”). 

	5 
	5 
	MUR 7406 Resp. at 1-2 (Aug. 20, 2018). 

	6 
	6 
	Id. 

	7 
	7 
	CTCA Letter to Heller. 


	1 corporate contributions and stated: 2 The FEC has requested that we inform you that any funds that 3 were contributed by the individuals associated with this conduct 4 be disgorged to the U.S. Treasury.  The check should be made 5 payable to the U.S. Treasury with the notation “MUR 7248” on 6 the check face.  The check should be mailed to Mark Shonkwiler, 7 Enforcement Division, Federal Election Commission, 999 E 8 Street, NW, Washington, DC 20463.
	8 

	9 10 The Committee did not disgorge the contributions. 11  In response to the MUR 7406 Complaint, the Committee acknowledges receipt of 12 CTCA’s original notification letter, as well as receipt of the prohibited contributions at issue.13 The Committee contends that it is not required to disgorge such funds because it received the 14 contributions in 2012, the contributions appeared legal at that time, and it did not learn that they 15 were illegal corporate contributions until 2017.16 The Act provides that
	9 
	10 
	shall knowingly accept a contribution made by one person in the name of another person.
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	8 
	8 
	8 
	Id.; see also MUR 7406 Compl. at 2. CTCA waived any rights it may have had to a refund of the illegal 

	contributions discussed in the conciliation agreement. See MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3; Fireman v. 
	contributions discussed in the conciliation agreement. See MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3; Fireman v. 

	United States, 44 Fed. Cl. 528 (1999). 
	United States, 44 Fed. Cl. 528 (1999). 

	9 
	9 
	MUR 7406 Resp. at 1-2. 

	10 
	10 
	Id.  The $27,500 in total contributions, which CTCA impermissibly reimbursed with corporate funds, is 

	comprised of the following individual contributions made to the Committee:  10/20/12 John Conway $2,500; 
	comprised of the following individual contributions made to the Committee:  10/20/12 John Conway $2,500; 

	10/20/12 Steven Kroll $2,500; 10/20/12 Christopher Lis $2,500; 10/20/12 John McNeil $2,500; 10/20/12 Phillip 
	10/20/12 Steven Kroll $2,500; 10/20/12 Christopher Lis $2,500; 10/20/12 John McNeil $2,500; 10/20/12 Phillip 

	Picchietti $2,500; 10/20/12 Edgar Staren $2,500; 10/20/12 Peter Yesawich $2,500; 10/23/12 John Steiner $2,500; 
	Picchietti $2,500; 10/20/12 Edgar Staren $2,500; 10/20/12 Peter Yesawich $2,500; 10/23/12 John Steiner $2,500; 

	10/24/12 Stephen Mackin $2,500; 10/26/12 Eric Magnussen $2,500; 10/26/12; Anne Meisner $2,500. 
	10/24/12 Stephen Mackin $2,500; 10/26/12 Eric Magnussen $2,500; 10/26/12; Anne Meisner $2,500. 

	11 
	11 
	52 U.S.C. § 30122. 


	1 The 2 Commission’s regulations further provide that if a political committee’s treasurer determined that 3 at the time a contribution was received and deposited, it did not appear to be made by a 4 corporation or in the name of another, “but later discovers that it is illegal based on new evidence 5 not available to the political committee at the time of receipt and deposit, the treasurer shall 6 refund the contribution to the contributor within thirty days of the date on which the illegality is 7 discove
	committees are prohibited from knowingly accepting or receiving such contributions.
	12 
	13
	14 

	10 an alternative to refunding the contribution to the contributor, the political committee may 11 12 In this matter, there is no allegation that the Committee knowingly accepted illegal 13 contributions at the time it accepted the contributions from CTCA executives in 2012.  However, 14 the Committee was put on notice in August 2017 that $27,500 in contributions were in fact 15 illegal contributions from CTCA and should be disgorged to the U.S. Treasury.  The Committee 
	disgorge to the U.S. Treasury an amount equal to the amount of the illegal contribution.
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	52 U.S.C. § 30118. 

	13 
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	11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). See also Contribution and Expenditure Limitations and Prohibitions; 

	Contributions by Persons and Multicandidate Political Committees, 52 Fed. Reg.760, 768-769 (Jan. 9, 1987) 
	Contributions by Persons and Multicandidate Political Committees, 52 Fed. Reg.760, 768-769 (Jan. 9, 1987) 

	(explaining that section 103.3(b)(2) applies to contributions whose legality is not in question when received and 
	(explaining that section 103.3(b)(2) applies to contributions whose legality is not in question when received and 

	deposited but which are later discover to be illegal such as, for example, corporate contributions made in the name of 
	deposited but which are later discover to be illegal such as, for example, corporate contributions made in the name of 

	employees and further explaining that the rule requires “the amount of the contribution to be refunded to the 
	employees and further explaining that the rule requires “the amount of the contribution to be refunded to the 

	contributor within thirty days after the discovery of the illegality”) (“103.3(b)(2) E&J”). 
	contributor within thirty days after the discovery of the illegality”) (“103.3(b)(2) E&J”). 

	14 
	14 
	11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). 

	15 
	15 
	See Advisory Op. 1996-05 (Jay Kim for Congress) at 2-3; see n.8 supra. 
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	1 
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	MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 5 of 6 was therefore required to disgorge16 the $27,500 in illegal contributions within thirty days of its 

	2 
	2 
	discovery of the illegality, that is, within thirty days of the August 2017 notification, or be 

	3 
	3 
	considered to have knowingly accepted illegal contributions as of 2017.17 

	4 
	4 
	The Committee argues that the regulation at section 103.3 does not require any refund or 

	5 
	5 
	disgorgement once a committee has held those contribution funds on deposit for more than thirty 

	6 
	6 
	days after receipt.18 
	The Committee also alleges that it no longer has the specific CTCA funds to 

	7 
	7 
	disgorge, noting that it used a “first in, first out” accounting method, and thus, no longer had any 

	8 
	8 
	funds traceable to CTCA’s 2012 corporate contributions in the name of another to disgorge.19 

	9 
	9 
	The Committee’s argument and regulatory interpretation concerning its refund 

	10 
	10 
	requirements are misplaced.  The explicit language of section 103.3(b) requires, for contributions 

	11 
	11 
	“later” discovered to be illegal, a refund within thirty days “of the date on which the illegality is 

	12 
	12 
	discovered.”  The Commission has not previously read “later,” in the context of a later 

	13 
	13 
	discovered illegal contribution, to be limited to a thirty day period after deposit of the 

	14 
	14 
	contributions and the Committee does not present a compelling reason for doing so now.20 

	15 
	15 
	Moreover, the regulations do not require that a committee make a required refund (or 

	16 
	16 
	disgorgement) using the same funds that comprised the illegal contribution; neither do the 

	17 
	17 
	regulations excuse the obligation to refund (or disgorge) if the funds were spent before the 

	TR
	16 The Committee could not refund to CTCA because CTCA waived any rights it may have had to a refund. See n.8 supra. 

	TR
	17 
	See n.24 infra. 

	TR
	18 
	MUR 7406 Resp. at 3. 

	TR
	19 
	Id. at 3-5. 

	TR
	20 See, e.g., Conciliation Agreement, MUR 4547 (Clinton/Gore ’96) ¶ IV.13 (noting that contributor’s guilty plea, entered three years after the committee had accepted contributions, “put [respondent committee] on notice regarding the illegality of the . . . contributions” made in the name of another three years prior). Attachment 1 Page 5 of 6 
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	1 illegality was discovered.  The Commission has explained that section 103.3 requires that “the 2 amount of the contribution” be refunded to the contributor within thirty days after the discovery 3 4 Indeed, even if a committee has no funds at the time it discovers the illegality, the regulations are 5 clear that the committee must make the refund from the next funds it receives, which, by 6 definition, are not funds traceable to the initial contribution later discovered to have been 7 A review of the Comm
	of the illegality, not that the same dollars that comprised the illegal contribution be refunded.
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	illegal.
	22 
	in prohibited corporate contributions.
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	10 impermissible contributions and the Committee failed to disgorge the contributions. 11 Therefore, there is reason to believe that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her 12 official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122 by knowingly accepting 13 corporate contributions made in the name of another. 
	24 

	See 103.3(b)(2) E& J. 52 Fed. Reg. at 768-769. 
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	See 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). 
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	Heller for Senate 2017 October Quarterly Report at 2 (Oct. 18, 2017) (disclosing $4.1 million cash on hand); 2018 Year-End Report at 2 (Jan. 31, 2019) (disclosing $184,400 cash on hand). 
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	See, e.g., MUR 4547 (Clinton/Gore ’96) (finding probable cause to believe that the recipient committee violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) and 441f (since recodified at 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(f) and 30122) for knowingly accepting excessive contributions and contributions in the name of another that the committee failed to refund after notification of their illegality); MUR 4484 (Bainum) General Counsel’s Rpt. at 7-8 (Feb. 7, 1997) and Certification ¶¶ 2-5 (Feb. 14, 1997) (finding reason to believe that recipient commi
	24 

	Attachment 1 Page 6 of 6 
	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	In the Matter of ) 
	) MUR 7406 
	Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in ) 
	her official capacity as treasurer ) 
	CERTIFICATION 
	CERTIFICATION 

	I, Vicktoria J. Allen, recording secretary for the Federal Election Commission executive session on May 06, 2021, do hereby certify that the Commission decided by a vote of 5-0 to take the following actions in MUR 7406: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Find reason to believe that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Approve the Factual and Legal Analysis, as recommended in the First General Counsel’s Report dated April 8, 2019. 

	3. 
	3. 
	Enter into conciliation with Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer prior to a finding of probable cause to believe. 

	4. 
	4. 
	Approve the Conciliation Agreement, as recommended in the First General Counsel’s Report dated April 8, 2019. 

	5. 
	5. 
	Approve the appropriate letter. 


	Commissioners Broussard, Cooksey, Dickerson, Trainor, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.  Commissioner Walther was recused and did not vote. 
	           May 12, 2021 Date 
	Federal Election Commission Page 2 Certification for MUR 7406 May 6, 2021 
	Attest: 
	Digitally signed by Vicktoria Allen
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	MUR 7406 Resp. at 1-2 (Aug. 20, 2018). 
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	Id. 
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	CTCA Letter to Heller. 
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	MUR 7406 Resp. at 1-2. 
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	Vicktoria Allen 
	Vicktoria Allen 
	Date:  13:30:35 -04'00' 
	2021.05.12

	Vicktoria J. Allen Acting Deputy Secretary of the Commission 
	Vicktoria J. Allen Acting Deputy Secretary of the Commission 
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION Washington, DC 20463 
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	May 25, 2021 
	VIA EMAIL ONLY cg@gobergroup.com tm@gobergroup.com 
	VIA EMAIL ONLY cg@gobergroup.com tm@gobergroup.com 
	VIA EMAIL ONLY cg@gobergroup.com tm@gobergroup.com 

	Chris K. Gober, Esq. Troy McCurry, Esq. The Gober Group P.O. Box 341016 Austin, TX 78734 
	Chris K. Gober, Esq. Troy McCurry, Esq. The Gober Group P.O. Box 341016 Austin, TX 78734 
	RE: 
	MUR 7406 Heller for Senate 

	Dear Messrs. Gober and McCurry: 
	Dear Messrs. Gober and McCurry: 


	On June 11, 2018, the Federal Election Commission (the “Commission”) notified your clients, Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”), of a complaint alleging that your clients violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”), and provided your clients with a copy of the complaint. 
	After reviewing the allegations contained in the complaint, your clients’ response, and publicly available information, the Commission on May 6, 2021, found reason to believe that the Committee violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122, provisions of the Act. The Factual and Legal Analysis, which formed a basis for the Commission’s findings, is enclosed for your information. 
	 In order to expedite the resolution of this matter, the Commission has authorized the Office of the General Counsel to enter into negotiations directed towards reaching a conciliation agreement in settlement of this matter prior to a finding of probable cause to believe. Preprobable cause conciliation is not mandated by the Act or the Commission’s regulations, but is a voluntary step in the enforcement process that the Commission is offering to your clients as a way to resolve this matter at an early stage
	-

	or not the Commission should find probable cause to believe that your clients violated the law.  Enclosed is a conciliation agreement for your consideration 
	Please note that your clients have a legal obligation to preserve all documents, records and materials relating to this matter until such time as your clients are notified that the Commission has closed its file in this matter. See 18 U.S.C. § 1519. 
	MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) Letter to Messrs. Gober and McCurry Page 2 
	If your clients are interested in engaging in pre-probable cause conciliation, please contact Christine Gallagher, the attorney assigned to this matter, at (202) 694-1505 or (800) 4249530, within seven days of receipt of this letter.  During conciliation, you may submit any factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the resolution of this matter.  Because the Commission only enters into pre-probable cause conciliation in matters that it believes have a reasonable opportunity for settlement,
	-

	Pre-probable cause conciliation, extensions of time, and other enforcement procedures and options are discussed more comprehensively in the Commission’s “Guidebook for Complainants and Respondents on the FEC Enforcement Process,” which is available on the 
	Commission’s website at http://www.fec.gov/respondent.guide.pdf. 

	Please be advised that, although the Commission cannot disclose information regarding an investigation to the public, it may share information on a confidential basis with other law enforcement agencies.
	1 

	This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B) and 30109(a)(12)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made public.  For your information, we have enclosed a brief description of the Commission’s procedures for handling possible violations of the Act.  
	We look forward to your response. 
	On behalf of the Commission, 
	P
	Figure

	Shana M. Broussard Chair 
	Shana M. Broussard Chair 
	Enclosures 

	The Commission has the statutory authority to refer knowing and willful violations of the Act to the Department of Justice for potential criminal prosecution, 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(C), and to report information regarding violations of law not within its jurisdiction to appropriate law enforcement authorities.  Id. § 30107(a)(9). 
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	1 resolution of MUR 7248, CTCA notified recipient committees, including Heller for Senate, that 2 they had received certain illegal contributions that they are required to disgorge to the U.S. 3 Treasury.4 In response, the Committee acknowledges that it received the CTCA-funded 5 contributions described in the Complaint, but states that it did not learn that those contributions 6 were prohibited corporate contributions until five years later, at the conclusion of MUR 7248.7 The Committee asserts that it is 
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	10 In accordance with the terms outlined in the conciliation agreement between the 11 Commission and CTCA in MUR 7248, by letter dated August 18, 2017, CTCA notified the 12 Committee of the Commission’s findings in MUR 7248 that CTCA had made prohibited 13 corporate contributions through a corporate bonus program in which it reimbursed its executives 14 who made individual contributions to various federal political committees with corporate funds.15 The letter further notified the Committee that it was the 
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	MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3 (July 28, 2017) (requiring CTCA to “seek disgorgement of all 

	such funds from all recipient candidates and committees to the U.S. Treasury”).  In August 2017, CTCA notified 
	such funds from all recipient candidates and committees to the U.S. Treasury”).  In August 2017, CTCA notified 

	recipient committees of the illegal contributions and requested that they disgorge specified amounts. See Letter from 
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	1 corporate contributions and stated: 2 The FEC has requested that we inform you that any funds that 3 were contributed by the individuals associated with this conduct 4 be disgorged to the U.S. Treasury.  The check should be made 5 payable to the U.S. Treasury with the notation “MUR 7248” on 6 the check face.  The check should be mailed to Mark Shonkwiler, 7 Enforcement Division, Federal Election Commission, 999 E 8 Street, NW, Washington, DC 20463.
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	9 10 The Committee did not disgorge the contributions. 11  In response to the MUR 7406 Complaint, the Committee acknowledges receipt of 12 CTCA’s original notification letter, as well as receipt of the prohibited contributions at issue.13 The Committee contends that it is not required to disgorge such funds because it received the 14 contributions in 2012, the contributions appeared legal at that time, and it did not learn that they 15 were illegal corporate contributions until 2017.16 The Act provides that
	9 
	10 
	shall knowingly accept a contribution made by one person in the name of another person.
	11 

	8 
	8 
	8 
	Id.; see also MUR 7406 Compl. at 2. CTCA waived any rights it may have had to a refund of the illegal 

	contributions discussed in the conciliation agreement. See MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3; Fireman v. 
	contributions discussed in the conciliation agreement. See MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3; Fireman v. 

	United States, 44 Fed. Cl. 528 (1999). 
	United States, 44 Fed. Cl. 528 (1999). 

	9 
	9 
	MUR 7406 Resp. at 1-2. 

	10 
	10 
	Id.  The $27,500 in total contributions, which CTCA impermissibly reimbursed with corporate funds, is 

	comprised of the following individual contributions made to the Committee:  10/20/12 John Conway $2,500; 
	comprised of the following individual contributions made to the Committee:  10/20/12 John Conway $2,500; 

	10/20/12 Steven Kroll $2,500; 10/20/12 Christopher Lis $2,500; 10/20/12 John McNeil $2,500; 10/20/12 Phillip 
	10/20/12 Steven Kroll $2,500; 10/20/12 Christopher Lis $2,500; 10/20/12 John McNeil $2,500; 10/20/12 Phillip 

	Picchietti $2,500; 10/20/12 Edgar Staren $2,500; 10/20/12 Peter Yesawich $2,500; 10/23/12 John Steiner $2,500; 
	Picchietti $2,500; 10/20/12 Edgar Staren $2,500; 10/20/12 Peter Yesawich $2,500; 10/23/12 John Steiner $2,500; 

	10/24/12 Stephen Mackin $2,500; 10/26/12 Eric Magnussen $2,500; 10/26/12; Anne Meisner $2,500. 
	10/24/12 Stephen Mackin $2,500; 10/26/12 Eric Magnussen $2,500; 10/26/12; Anne Meisner $2,500. 

	11 
	11 
	52 U.S.C. § 30122. 
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	1 The 2 Commission’s regulations further provide that if a political committee’s treasurer determined that 3 at the time a contribution was received and deposited, it did not appear to be made by a 4 corporation or in the name of another, “but later discovers that it is illegal based on new evidence 5 not available to the political committee at the time of receipt and deposit, the treasurer shall 6 refund the contribution to the contributor within thirty days of the date on which the illegality is 7 discove
	committees are prohibited from knowingly accepting or receiving such contributions.
	12 
	13
	14 

	10 an alternative to refunding the contribution to the contributor, the political committee may 11 12 In this matter, there is no allegation that the Committee knowingly accepted illegal 13 contributions at the time it accepted the contributions from CTCA executives in 2012.  However, 14 the Committee was put on notice in August 2017 that $27,500 in contributions were in fact 15 illegal contributions from CTCA and should be disgorged to the U.S. Treasury.  The Committee 
	disgorge to the U.S. Treasury an amount equal to the amount of the illegal contribution.
	15 

	12 
	12 
	12 
	52 U.S.C. § 30118. 

	13 
	13 
	11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). See also Contribution and Expenditure Limitations and Prohibitions; 

	Contributions by Persons and Multicandidate Political Committees, 52 Fed. Reg.760, 768-769 (Jan. 9, 1987) 
	Contributions by Persons and Multicandidate Political Committees, 52 Fed. Reg.760, 768-769 (Jan. 9, 1987) 

	(explaining that section 103.3(b)(2) applies to contributions whose legality is not in question when received and 
	(explaining that section 103.3(b)(2) applies to contributions whose legality is not in question when received and 

	deposited but which are later discover to be illegal such as, for example, corporate contributions made in the name of 
	deposited but which are later discover to be illegal such as, for example, corporate contributions made in the name of 

	employees and further explaining that the rule requires “the amount of the contribution to be refunded to the 
	employees and further explaining that the rule requires “the amount of the contribution to be refunded to the 

	contributor within thirty days after the discovery of the illegality”) (“103.3(b)(2) E&J”). 
	contributor within thirty days after the discovery of the illegality”) (“103.3(b)(2) E&J”). 

	14 
	14 
	11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). 

	15 
	15 
	See Advisory Op. 1996-05 (Jay Kim for Congress) at 2-3; see n.8 supra. 


	1 
	1 
	1 
	MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 5 of 6 was therefore required to disgorge16 the $27,500 in illegal contributions within thirty days of its 

	2 
	2 
	discovery of the illegality, that is, within thirty days of the August 2017 notification, or be 

	3 
	3 
	considered to have knowingly accepted illegal contributions as of 2017.17 

	4 
	4 
	The Committee argues that the regulation at section 103.3 does not require any refund or 

	5 
	5 
	disgorgement once a committee has held those contribution funds on deposit for more than thirty 

	6 
	6 
	days after receipt.18 
	The Committee also alleges that it no longer has the specific CTCA funds to 

	7 
	7 
	disgorge, noting that it used a “first in, first out” accounting method, and thus, no longer had any 

	8 
	8 
	funds traceable to CTCA’s 2012 corporate contributions in the name of another to disgorge.19 

	9 
	9 
	The Committee’s argument and regulatory interpretation concerning its refund 

	10 
	10 
	requirements are misplaced.  The explicit language of section 103.3(b) requires, for contributions 

	11 
	11 
	“later” discovered to be illegal, a refund within thirty days “of the date on which the illegality is 

	12 
	12 
	discovered.”  The Commission has not previously read “later,” in the context of a later 

	13 
	13 
	discovered illegal contribution, to be limited to a thirty day period after deposit of the 

	14 
	14 
	contributions and the Committee does not present a compelling reason for doing so now.20 

	15 
	15 
	Moreover, the regulations do not require that a committee make a required refund (or 

	16 
	16 
	disgorgement) using the same funds that comprised the illegal contribution; neither do the 

	17 
	17 
	regulations excuse the obligation to refund (or disgorge) if the funds were spent before the 

	TR
	16 The Committee could not refund to CTCA because CTCA waived any rights it may have had to a refund. See n.8 supra. 17 See n.24 infra. 

	TR
	18 19 
	MUR 7406 Resp. at 3. Id. at 3-5. 

	TR
	20 See, e.g., Conciliation Agreement, MUR 4547 (Clinton/Gore ’96) ¶ IV.13 (noting that contributor’s guilty plea, entered three years after the committee had accepted contributions, “put [respondent committee] on notice regarding the illegality of the . . . contributions” made in the name of another three years prior). 
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	1 illegality was discovered.  The Commission has explained that section 103.3 requires that “the 2 amount of the contribution” be refunded to the contributor within thirty days after the discovery 3 4 Indeed, even if a committee has no funds at the time it discovers the illegality, the regulations are 5 clear that the committee must make the refund from the next funds it receives, which, by 6 definition, are not funds traceable to the initial contribution later discovered to have been 7 A review of the Comm
	of the illegality, not that the same dollars that comprised the illegal contribution be refunded.
	21 
	illegal.
	22 
	in prohibited corporate contributions.
	23 

	10 impermissible contributions and the Committee failed to disgorge the contributions. 11 Therefore, there is reason to believe that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her 12 official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122 by knowingly accepting 13 corporate contributions made in the name of another. 
	24 

	See 103.3(b)(2) E& J. 52 Fed. Reg. at 768-769. 
	21 

	See 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). 
	22 

	Heller for Senate 2017 October Quarterly Report at 2 (Oct. 18, 2017) (disclosing $4.1 million cash on hand); 2018 Year-End Report at 2 (Jan. 31, 2019) (disclosing $184,400 cash on hand). 
	23 

	See, e.g., MUR 4547 (Clinton/Gore ’96) (finding probable cause to believe that the recipient committee violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) and 441f (since recodified at 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(f) and 30122) for knowingly accepting excessive contributions and contributions in the name of another that the committee failed to refund after notification of their illegality); MUR 4484 (Bainum) General Counsel’s Rpt. at 7-8 (Feb. 7, 1997) and Certification ¶¶ 2-5 (Feb. 14, 1997) (finding reason to believe that recipient commi
	24 
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	TWO WAY MEMORANDUM 
	TWO WAY MEMORANDUM 
	TWO WAY MEMORANDUM 

	TO: OGC Docket   FROM: Anh Vuong 
	Financial Analyst 
	SUBJECT: Account Determination for Funds Received 
	We recently received a check Heller Highwater PAC. The check number is 1041. Dated 07/28/2021 in the amount ofa copy of the receipt and all correspondence are attached.  Please indicate below which account the funds should be deposited and give the MUR/Case number and name associated with the deposit. ====================================================== TO: Anh Vuong 
	 $10,000.00 

	Financial Analyst FROM:       OGC Docket 
	SUBJECT: Disposition of Funds Received 
	In reference to the above check in the amount of $_ The MUR/Case number is  and in the name of   . 
	Please this deposit in the account indicated below: 
	___ Civil Penalties Account, 95-1099.160 
	___ Miscellaneous Receipt Account, 95-3220.160 (Disgorgement) 
	Digitally signed by Christal
	Figure

	Christal 
	Dennis Date:  11:48:43
	2021.08.23

	Dennis 
	-04'00' 
	______________________ ________________ 
	Signature Date 
	Figure

	Heller for Senate 2021 AUG -5 AM 9: 14· 
	Heller for Senate 2021 AUG -5 AM 9: 14· 
	July 28, 2021 
	Federal Election Commission Office of General Council 
	RE: MUR 7406 -Heller for Senate 
	Enclosed please find the conciliation agreement payment in the amount of $10,000 for the aforementioned MUR for Heller for Senate. 
	Additionally, enclosed is a copy of the check made out to the US Dept. of the Treasury disgorging the $27,500 in contributions cited in the MUR. 
	At this time our committee believes to be in compliance and MUR 7406 is now closed with the commission. 
	Figure
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	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	Washington, D.C. 20463 
	Figure
	MEMORANDUM 
	MEMORANDUM 

	TO: The Commission 
	FROM: Lisa J. Stevenson Acting General Counsel Charles Kitcher 
	Associate General Counsel for Enforcement BY: Mark Allen 
	Assistant General Counsel Christine C. Gallagher 

	Attorney 
	SUBJECT: MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) Recommendation to Accept Signed Conciliation Agreement 
	On May 6, 2021, the Commission found reason to believe that Heller for Senate and 
	Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”) violated 52 U.S.C. 
	§§ 30118 and 30122 by knowingly accepting corporate contributions made in the name of
	approved a conciliation agreement 
	another.
	The Commission also authorized pre-probable cause to believe conciliation and
	1 

	Attached is a proposed conciliation agreement signed by the Committee’s treasurer thatresolves the Commission’s prior reason to believe finding. 
	Attached is a proposed conciliation agreement signed by the Committee’s treasurer thatresolves the Commission’s prior reason to believe finding. 

	The Committee has paid the civil penalty and made the disgorgement to the U.S. Treasury.
	3 

	: 
	RECOMMENDATIONS

	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept the attached conciliation agreement. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Approve the appropriate letters. 

	3. 
	3. 
	Close the file. 


	1 Certification (May 12, 2021). 
	See Two-Way Memorandum from Anh Vuong, Financial Analyst to OGC Docket, Account Determination For Funds Received (Aug.23, 2021); see also Email from Chrissie Hastie, Treasurer, to Christine C. Gallagher, Attorney, FEC (Aug. 24, 2021 3:08 PM EST) (attaching copy of cleared disgorgement check to U.S. Treasury). 
	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	In the Matter of ) 
	) MUR 7406 Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in ) her official capacity as treasurer: ) Recommendation to Accept Signed ) Conciliation Agreement ) 
	CERTIFICATION 
	CERTIFICATION 

	I, Laura E. Sinram, Acting Secretary and Clerk of the Federal Election Commission, do hereby certify that on October 06, 2021, the Commission decided by a vote of 5-0 to take the following actions in MUR 7406: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Accept the conciliation agreement, as recommended in the Memorandum to the Commission dated September 22, 2021. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Approve the appropriate letters. 

	3. 
	3. 
	Close the file. 


	Commissioners Broussard, Cooksey, Dickerson, Trainor, and Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision.  Commissioner Walther recused himself with respect to this matter and did not vote. 
	October 8, 2021 Date 
	Attest: 
	Laura e Sinram 
	Laura e Sinram 
	Digitally signed by Laura e Sinram Date: 2021.10.08 12:04:30 -04'00' 
	Laura E. Sinram Acting Secretary and Clerk of the Commission 
	Laura E. Sinram Acting Secretary and Clerk of the Commission 


	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION Washington, DC 20463 
	Figure
	October 19, 2021 
	CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
	CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

	Nevada State Democratic Party Attn: Judith Whitmer, Chair 2310 Paseo Del Prado Suite A120 Las Vegas, NV 89102 
	RE: MUR 7406 Heller for Senate 
	Dear Ms. Whitmer: 
	This is in reference to the complaint filed by the Nevada State Democratic Party with the Federal Election Commission on June 5, 2018, concerning Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”).  The Commission found that there was reason to believe the Committee violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122, provisions of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended.  On October 6, 2021, the Commission accepted a conciliation agreement signed by the respondent
	Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.  See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702  (Aug. 2, 2016). A copy of the conciliation agreement and the Factual and Legal Analysis which more fully explain the Commission’s findings in this matter are enclosed for your information. 
	If you have any questions, please contact me at (202) 694-1650. 
	Sincerely, Christine C. Gallagher 
	Attorney 
	Enclosures Conciliation Agreement  Factual and Legal Analysis 
	< ' 
	I 
	' 

	....
	'

	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION .
	'(.JI ,. 
	r '..' 
	c " ! 
	r
	·
	-

	In the Matter of ) 
	) MUR 7406 Heller for Senate and ) , Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer ) 
	) 
	CONCILIATION AGREEMENT 
	This matler was initiated by a signed, sworn, and notarized complaint by the Nevada Sta!c 
	Democratic Party by Alana Mounce, its Executive Director. The Federal Election Commission ("Commission'') found reason to believe that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer ("Committee" or "Respondent"), violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122. 
	NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission and the Respondent, having participated in 
	informal methods of conciliation, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, do hereby agree 
	as follows: 
	I. The Commission has jurisdiction over the Respondent and the subject matter of this proceeding, and this agreement ha,s_ the effect of an agreement entered pursuant to 52 U.S.C. 
	§ 30109(a)(4)(A)(i). IL Respondent has had a reasonable opportunity to demonstrate that no action should 
	be taken in this matter. HI. Respondent enters voluntarily into this agreement with the Commission. 
	IV. The pertinent facts in this matter are as follows: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Heller for Senate is a political committee within the meaning of 52 U.S.C. § 30 l 01(4). 

	2. 
	2. 
	Chrissie Hastie is the treasurer ofHeller for Senate. 
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	MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) Conciliation Agreement Page 2 of4 
	3. 
	3. 
	3. 
	No person shall make a contribution in the name of another person or knowingly permit his or her name lo be used to make such a contribution, and no committee shall knowingly accept a contribution made by one person in the name of another person. See 52 U.S.C. § 30122. 

	4. 
	4. 
	ll is unlawful for corporations to contribute to candidates, and candidates and authorized committees are prohibited from knowingly accepting or receiving such contributions. See 52 U.S.C. § 30118. 

	5. 
	5. 
	The Commission's regulations provide that ifa political committee treasurer in exercising his or her responsibilities under 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b) determined that at lhc time a contribution was received and deposited, it did not appear to be made by a corporation or in the name ofanother, but later discovers that it is illegal based on new evidence not available lo the political committee at the time of receipt and deposit, the treasurer shall refund the contribution to the contributor within thirty days of t

	6. 
	6. 
	In a previous enforcement matter, MUR 7248, the Commission found. inter alia, reason to believe the Cancer Treatment Centers ofAmerica Global. Inc. ("CTCA ") violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30 l 18 and 30122 by making prohibited corporate contributions in lhc name or another person when it reimbursed with corporate funds the political contributions of its executives. As part of the te11ns of the conciliation agreement in MUR 7248, CTCA waived any 


	MUR. 7406 (Heller for Senate) Conciliation Agreement Page J of4 
	rights it may have had to a refund ofthe illegal contributions discussed in the conciliation agreement and CTCA was required to "seek disgorgement of all such funds from all recipient candidates and committees to the U.S. Treasury." See MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ,1 Vl.3 (July 28, 2017). By letter dated August 18, 2017, as part of the resolution of MUR 7248, CTCA notified the Committee thal it was a recipient ofsome ofCTCA's illegal contributions. and instructed the Committee to disgorge $27,500, the a
	7. The Committee received illegal contributions, and should have disgorged $27.500 to the U.S. Treasury within thirty (30) days ofits receipt of CTCA·s August 18, 2017 letter, but the Committee failed to do so. 
	V. Respondent knowingly accepted $27,500 in corporate contributions made in the names ofothers from the Cancer Treatment Centers ofAmerica Global, Inc. in violation of 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122 by failing to disgorge the illegal contributions within thirty (30) clays ofreceiving notice of the illegal nature ofthe contributions. 
	Vl. 1. Respondent will pay a civil penalty to the Federal Election Commission in the amount ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000). pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(A). 
	2. Respondent will disgorge $27,500 to the U.S. Treasury. 
	3. Respondent will cease anct desist from violating 52 U.S.C. §s 30118 and 30122. 
	VTJ. The Commission, on request ofanyone filing a complaint under 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)( I) concerning the matters at issue herein or on its own motion, may review compliance with this agreement. Ifthe Commission believes that this agreement or any 
	MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) Conciliati<m Agreement 1>agc 4 of4 
	requirement thereof has been violated, it may institute a civil action for relief in the United States District Court for the District ofColumbia. YUL This agreement shall become effective as of the date that all parties hereto havc executed same and the Commission has approved the entire agreement. 
	IX. 
	IX. 
	IX. 
	Respondent shall have no more than 30 days from the date this agreement becomes effective to comply with and implement the requirements contained in this agreement and to so notify the Commission. 

	X. 
	X. 
	This Conciliation Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on the matters raised herein, and no other statement, promise, or agreement, either written or oral, made by either party or by agents of either party, that is not contained in this written agreement shall be enforceable. FOR THE COMMISSION: Lisa J. Stevenson 


	Acting General Counsel 
	Charles Kitcher Aeling Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	Charles Kitcher Aeling Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	Charles Kitcher Aeling Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	10/19/21 Date 

	FOR THE RESPONDENT: 
	FOR THE RESPONDENT: 


	BY: 
	Figure
	Date < \ 
	1 
	1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 2 3 FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 4 5 RESPONDENT:   Heller for Senate and MUR 7406 6 Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer 7 8 I. INTRODUCTION 
	9 This matter was generated by a complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission 10 pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(1) alleging that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her 11 official capacity as treasurer (the “Committee”) violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 12 1971, as amended (the “Act”), by failing to disgorge improper campaign contributions within 30 13 days of discovering that they came from a prohibited source. 14 Based on the allegations of the complaint, the response, and the 
	1 
	2 
	3

	1 
	1 
	1 
	MUR 7406 Compl. at 2 (June 5, 2018). 

	2 
	2 
	Id. 

	3 
	3 
	MUR 7248 Amended Certification (May 15, 2017). 


	MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 2 of 6 
	1 resolution of MUR 7248, CTCA notified recipient committees, including Heller for Senate, that 2 they had received certain illegal contributions that they are required to disgorge to the U.S. 3 Treasury.4 In response, the Committee acknowledges that it received the CTCA-funded 5 contributions described in the Complaint, but states that it did not learn that those contributions 6 were prohibited corporate contributions until five years later, at the conclusion of MUR 7248.7 The Committee asserts that it is 
	4 
	5 
	6 

	10 In accordance with the terms outlined in the conciliation agreement between the 11 Commission and CTCA in MUR 7248, by letter dated August 18, 2017, CTCA notified the 12 Committee of the Commission’s findings in MUR 7248 that CTCA had made prohibited 13 corporate contributions through a corporate bonus program in which it reimbursed its executives 14 who made individual contributions to various federal political committees with corporate funds.15 The letter further notified the Committee that it was the 
	7 

	4 
	4 
	4 
	MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3 (July 28, 2017) (requiring CTCA to “seek disgorgement of all 

	such funds from all recipient candidates and committees to the U.S. Treasury”).  In August 2017, CTCA notified 
	such funds from all recipient candidates and committees to the U.S. Treasury”).  In August 2017, CTCA notified 

	recipient committees of the illegal contributions and requested that they disgorge specified amounts. See Letter from 
	recipient committees of the illegal contributions and requested that they disgorge specified amounts. See Letter from 

	Timothy E. Flanigan, Chief Legal Officer and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer, CTCA, to Hon. Dean Heller 
	Timothy E. Flanigan, Chief Legal Officer and Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer, CTCA, to Hon. Dean Heller 

	(Aug. 18, 2017) (“CTCA Letter to Heller”). 
	(Aug. 18, 2017) (“CTCA Letter to Heller”). 

	5 
	5 
	MUR 7406 Resp. at 1-2 (Aug. 20, 2018). 

	6 
	6 
	Id. 

	7 
	7 
	CTCA Letter to Heller. 
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	1 corporate contributions and stated: 2 The FEC has requested that we inform you that any funds that 3 were contributed by the individuals associated with this conduct 4 be disgorged to the U.S. Treasury.  The check should be made 5 payable to the U.S. Treasury with the notation “MUR 7248” on 6 the check face.  The check should be mailed to Mark Shonkwiler, 7 Enforcement Division, Federal Election Commission, 999 E 8 Street, NW, Washington, DC 20463.
	8 

	9 10 The Committee did not disgorge the contributions. 11  In response to the MUR 7406 Complaint, the Committee acknowledges receipt of 12 CTCA’s original notification letter, as well as receipt of the prohibited contributions at issue.13 The Committee contends that it is not required to disgorge such funds because it received the 14 contributions in 2012, the contributions appeared legal at that time, and it did not learn that they 15 were illegal corporate contributions until 2017.16 The Act provides that
	9 
	10 
	shall knowingly accept a contribution made by one person in the name of another person.
	11 

	8 
	8 
	8 
	Id.; see also MUR 7406 Compl. at 2. CTCA waived any rights it may have had to a refund of the illegal 

	contributions discussed in the conciliation agreement. See MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3; Fireman v. 
	contributions discussed in the conciliation agreement. See MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ¶ VI.3; Fireman v. 

	United States, 44 Fed. Cl. 528 (1999). 
	United States, 44 Fed. Cl. 528 (1999). 

	9 
	9 
	MUR 7406 Resp. at 1-2. 

	10 
	10 
	Id.  The $27,500 in total contributions, which CTCA impermissibly reimbursed with corporate funds, is 

	comprised of the following individual contributions made to the Committee:  10/20/12 John Conway $2,500; 
	comprised of the following individual contributions made to the Committee:  10/20/12 John Conway $2,500; 

	10/20/12 Steven Kroll $2,500; 10/20/12 Christopher Lis $2,500; 10/20/12 John McNeil $2,500; 10/20/12 Phillip 
	10/20/12 Steven Kroll $2,500; 10/20/12 Christopher Lis $2,500; 10/20/12 John McNeil $2,500; 10/20/12 Phillip 

	Picchietti $2,500; 10/20/12 Edgar Staren $2,500; 10/20/12 Peter Yesawich $2,500; 10/23/12 John Steiner $2,500; 
	Picchietti $2,500; 10/20/12 Edgar Staren $2,500; 10/20/12 Peter Yesawich $2,500; 10/23/12 John Steiner $2,500; 

	10/24/12 Stephen Mackin $2,500; 10/26/12 Eric Magnussen $2,500; 10/26/12; Anne Meisner $2,500. 
	10/24/12 Stephen Mackin $2,500; 10/26/12 Eric Magnussen $2,500; 10/26/12; Anne Meisner $2,500. 

	11 
	11 
	52 U.S.C. § 30122. 
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	1 The 2 Commission’s regulations further provide that if a political committee’s treasurer determined that 3 at the time a contribution was received and deposited, it did not appear to be made by a 4 corporation or in the name of another, “but later discovers that it is illegal based on new evidence 5 not available to the political committee at the time of receipt and deposit, the treasurer shall 6 refund the contribution to the contributor within thirty days of the date on which the illegality is 7 discove
	committees are prohibited from knowingly accepting or receiving such contributions.
	12 
	13
	14 

	10 an alternative to refunding the contribution to the contributor, the political committee may 11 12 In this matter, there is no allegation that the Committee knowingly accepted illegal 13 contributions at the time it accepted the contributions from CTCA executives in 2012.  However, 14 the Committee was put on notice in August 2017 that $27,500 in contributions were in fact 15 illegal contributions from CTCA and should be disgorged to the U.S. Treasury.  The Committee 
	disgorge to the U.S. Treasury an amount equal to the amount of the illegal contribution.
	15 

	12 
	12 
	12 
	52 U.S.C. § 30118. 

	13 
	13 
	11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). See also Contribution and Expenditure Limitations and Prohibitions; 

	Contributions by Persons and Multicandidate Political Committees, 52 Fed. Reg.760, 768-769 (Jan. 9, 1987) 
	Contributions by Persons and Multicandidate Political Committees, 52 Fed. Reg.760, 768-769 (Jan. 9, 1987) 

	(explaining that section 103.3(b)(2) applies to contributions whose legality is not in question when received and 
	(explaining that section 103.3(b)(2) applies to contributions whose legality is not in question when received and 

	deposited but which are later discover to be illegal such as, for example, corporate contributions made in the name of 
	deposited but which are later discover to be illegal such as, for example, corporate contributions made in the name of 

	employees and further explaining that the rule requires “the amount of the contribution to be refunded to the 
	employees and further explaining that the rule requires “the amount of the contribution to be refunded to the 

	contributor within thirty days after the discovery of the illegality”) (“103.3(b)(2) E&J”). 
	contributor within thirty days after the discovery of the illegality”) (“103.3(b)(2) E&J”). 

	14 
	14 
	11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). 

	15 
	15 
	See Advisory Op. 1996-05 (Jay Kim for Congress) at 2-3; see n.8 supra. 


	1 
	1 
	1 
	MUR 7406 (Heller for Senate) Factual and Legal Analysis Page 5 of 6 was therefore required to disgorge16 the $27,500 in illegal contributions within thirty days of its 

	2 
	2 
	discovery of the illegality, that is, within thirty days of the August 2017 notification, or be 

	3 
	3 
	considered to have knowingly accepted illegal contributions as of 2017.17 

	4 
	4 
	The Committee argues that the regulation at section 103.3 does not require any refund or 

	5 
	5 
	disgorgement once a committee has held those contribution funds on deposit for more than thirty 

	6 
	6 
	days after receipt.18 
	The Committee also alleges that it no longer has the specific CTCA funds to 

	7 
	7 
	disgorge, noting that it used a “first in, first out” accounting method, and thus, no longer had any 

	8 
	8 
	funds traceable to CTCA’s 2012 corporate contributions in the name of another to disgorge.19 

	9 
	9 
	The Committee’s argument and regulatory interpretation concerning its refund 

	10 
	10 
	requirements are misplaced.  The explicit language of section 103.3(b) requires, for contributions 

	11 
	11 
	“later” discovered to be illegal, a refund within thirty days “of the date on which the illegality is 

	12 
	12 
	discovered.”  The Commission has not previously read “later,” in the context of a later 

	13 
	13 
	discovered illegal contribution, to be limited to a thirty day period after deposit of the 

	14 
	14 
	contributions and the Committee does not present a compelling reason for doing so now.20 

	15 
	15 
	Moreover, the regulations do not require that a committee make a required refund (or 

	16 
	16 
	disgorgement) using the same funds that comprised the illegal contribution; neither do the 

	17 
	17 
	regulations excuse the obligation to refund (or disgorge) if the funds were spent before the 

	TR
	16 The Committee could not refund to CTCA because CTCA waived any rights it may have had to a refund. See n.8 supra. 17 See n.24 infra. 

	TR
	18 19 
	MUR 7406 Resp. at 3. Id. at 3-5. 

	TR
	20 See, e.g., Conciliation Agreement, MUR 4547 (Clinton/Gore ’96) ¶ IV.13 (noting that contributor’s guilty plea, entered three years after the committee had accepted contributions, “put [respondent committee] on notice regarding the illegality of the . . . contributions” made in the name of another three years prior). 
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	1 illegality was discovered.  The Commission has explained that section 103.3 requires that “the 2 amount of the contribution” be refunded to the contributor within thirty days after the discovery 3 4 Indeed, even if a committee has no funds at the time it discovers the illegality, the regulations are 5 clear that the committee must make the refund from the next funds it receives, which, by 6 definition, are not funds traceable to the initial contribution later discovered to have been 7 A review of the Comm
	of the illegality, not that the same dollars that comprised the illegal contribution be refunded.
	21 
	illegal.
	22 
	in prohibited corporate contributions.
	23 

	10 impermissible contributions and the Committee failed to disgorge the contributions. 11 Therefore, there is reason to believe that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her 12 official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122 by knowingly accepting 13 corporate contributions made in the name of another. 
	24 

	See 103.3(b)(2) E& J. 52 Fed. Reg. at 768-769. 
	21 

	See 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b)(2). 
	22 

	Heller for Senate 2017 October Quarterly Report at 2 (Oct. 18, 2017) (disclosing $4.1 million cash on hand); 2018 Year-End Report at 2 (Jan. 31, 2019) (disclosing $184,400 cash on hand). 
	23 

	See, e.g., MUR 4547 (Clinton/Gore ’96) (finding probable cause to believe that the recipient committee violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 441a(f) and 441f (since recodified at 52 U.S.C. §§ 30116(f) and 30122) for knowingly accepting excessive contributions and contributions in the name of another that the committee failed to refund after notification of their illegality); MUR 4484 (Bainum) General Counsel’s Rpt. at 7-8 (Feb. 7, 1997) and Certification ¶¶ 2-5 (Feb. 14, 1997) (finding reason to believe that recipient commi
	24 

	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION Washington, DC 20463 
	Figure
	October 19, 2021 
	Via Email and First Class Mail 
	Via Email and First Class Mail 

	Email:  
	cg@gobergroup.com 
	cg@gobergroup.com 


	Chris Gober Managing Partner The Gober Group 14425 Falcon Head Blvd. Bldg E., Suite 100 Austin, TX 78738 
	RE: MUR 7406 Heller for Senate Dear Mr. Gober: 
	On October 6, 2021, the Federal Election Commission accepted the signed conciliation agreement and civil penalty submitted on your client’s behalf in settlement of a violation of 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122, provisions of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended.  Heller for Senate has also disgorged the improper contributions to the U.S. Treasury.  Accordingly, the file has been closed in this matter. 
	Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.   See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 (Aug. 2, 2016). Information derived in connection with any conciliation attempt will not become public without the written consent of the respondent and the Commission.  See 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B). 
	Enclosed you will find a copy of the fully executed conciliation agreement for your files.   If you have any questions, please contact me at (202) 694-1650. 
	Sincerely, 
	Christine C. Gallagher Attorney 
	Enclosure Conciliation Agreement 
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	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION .
	'(.JI ,. 
	r '..' 
	c " ! 
	r
	·
	-

	In the Matter of ) 
	) MUR 7406 Heller for Senate and ) , Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer ) 
	) 
	CONCILIATION AGREEMENT 
	This matler was initiated by a signed, sworn, and notarized complaint by the Nevada Sta!c 
	Democratic Party by Alana Mounce, its Executive Director. The Federal Election Commission ("Commission'') found reason to believe that Heller for Senate and Chrissie Hastie in her official capacity as treasurer ("Committee" or "Respondent"), violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122. 
	NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission and the Respondent, having participated in 
	informal methods of conciliation, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, do hereby agree 
	as follows: 
	I. The Commission has jurisdiction over the Respondent and the subject matter of this proceeding, and this agreement ha,s_ the effect of an agreement entered pursuant to 52 U.S.C. 
	§ 30109(a)(4)(A)(i). IL Respondent has had a reasonable opportunity to demonstrate that no action should 
	be taken in this matter. HI. Respondent enters voluntarily into this agreement with the Commission. 
	IV. The pertinent facts in this matter are as follows: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Heller for Senate is a political committee within the meaning of 52 U.S.C. § 30 l 01(4). 

	2. 
	2. 
	Chrissie Hastie is the treasurer ofHeller for Senate. 
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	3. 
	3. 
	3. 
	No person shall make a contribution in the name of another person or knowingly permit his or her name lo be used to make such a contribution, and no committee shall knowingly accept a contribution made by one person in the name of another person. See 52 U.S.C. § 30122. 

	4. 
	4. 
	ll is unlawful for corporations to contribute to candidates, and candidates and authorized committees are prohibited from knowingly accepting or receiving such contributions. See 52 U.S.C. § 30118. 

	5. 
	5. 
	The Commission's regulations provide that ifa political committee treasurer in exercising his or her responsibilities under 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b) determined that at lhc time a contribution was received and deposited, it did not appear to be made by a corporation or in the name ofanother, but later discovers that it is illegal based on new evidence not available lo the political committee at the time of receipt and deposit, the treasurer shall refund the contribution to the contributor within thirty days of t

	6. 
	6. 
	In a previous enforcement matter, MUR 7248, the Commission found. inter alia, reason to believe the Cancer Treatment Centers ofAmerica Global. Inc. ("CTCA ") violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30 l 18 and 30122 by making prohibited corporate contributions in lhc name or another person when it reimbursed with corporate funds the political contributions of its 


	executives. As part of the te11ns of the conciliation agreement in MUR 7248, CTCA waived any 
	MUR. 7406 (Heller for Senate) Conciliation Agreement Page J of4 
	rights it may have had to a refund ofthe illegal contributions discussed in the conciliation agreement and CTCA was required to "seek disgorgement of all such funds from all recipient candidates and committees to the U.S. Treasury." See MUR 7248 Conciliation Agreement ,1 Vl.3 (July 28, 2017). By letter dated August 18, 2017, as part of the resolution of MUR 7248, CTCA notified the Committee thal it was a recipient ofsome ofCTCA's illegal contributions. and instructed the Committee to disgorge $27,500, the a
	7. The Committee received illegal contributions, and should have disgorged $27.500 to the U.S. Treasury within thirty (30) days ofits receipt of CTCA·s August 18, 2017 letter, but the Committee failed to do so. 
	V. Respondent knowingly accepted $27,500 in corporate contributions made in the names ofothers from the Cancer Treatment Centers ofAmerica Global, Inc. in violation of 52 U.S.C. §§ 30118 and 30122 by failing to disgorge the illegal contributions within thirty (30) clays ofreceiving notice of the illegal nature ofthe contributions. 
	Vl. 1. Respondent will pay a civil penalty to the Federal Election Commission in the amount ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000). pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(A). 
	2. Respondent will disgorge $27,500 to the U.S. Treasury. 
	3. Respondent will cease anct desist from violating 52 U.S.C. §s 30118 and 30122. 
	VTJ. The Commission, on request ofanyone filing a complaint under 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)( I) concerning the matters at issue herein or on its own motion, may review compliance with this agreement. Ifthe Commission believes that this agreement or any 
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	requirement thereof has been violated, it may institute a civil action for relief in the United States District Court for the District ofColumbia. YUL This agreement shall become effective as of the date that all parties hereto havc executed same and the Commission has approved the entire agreement. 
	IX. 
	IX. 
	IX. 
	Respondent shall have no more than 30 days from the date this agreement becomes effective to comply with and implement the requirements contained in this agreement and to so notify the Commission. 

	X. 
	X. 
	This Conciliation Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on the matters raised herein, and no other statement, promise, or agreement, either written or oral, made by either party or by agents of either party, that is not contained in this written agreement shall be enforceable. FOR THE COMMISSION: Lisa J. Stevenson 


	Acting General Counsel 
	Charles Kitcher Aeling Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	Charles Kitcher Aeling Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	Charles Kitcher Aeling Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	10/19/21 Date 

	FOR THE RESPONDENT: 
	FOR THE RESPONDENT: 


	BY: 
	Figure
	Date < \ 
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